INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

A) We draw attention to note 27 to the financial statements regarding certain instances of irregularities in
disbursement/ payment of salary to fictitious and left employees in the current as well as earlier years.
Based on initial inquiries performed by the Management, they have quantified the possible impact of such
irregularities to be INR 9.95 lakhs (Cost relating to current year amounts to INR 1.37 lakhs and balance
INR 8.58 lakhs relates to prior years) and recovered such amounts from the concerned employees during
the current year. In this regard, the Company has further initiated a forensic investigation of such
irregularities by engaging an external independent expert and pending the completion of the same, we are
unable to comment on the impact, if any, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

B) We draw attention to Note 3A to the financial statements regarding the fact that the Company is unable to
carry out physical verification of certain property, plant and equipment lying with its customers over the
past three years in accordance with its policy amounting to INR 313.54 lakhs (gross block), INR 22.98
lakhs (net block). Consequently, we are unable to comment on the existence and carrying value of such
assets.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAS),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.



Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i)

(i)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(&) We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in
our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,;

(e) The matter described in the Disclaimer of opinion in relation to internal controls over financial reporting
as contained in Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s report and our comments in Basis of qualified
opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

(F) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;



(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
27 to this report;

(h) Inour opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

V.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 22121648 AXFWQC9309
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 30, 2022



Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

(1) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) As mentioned in paragraph B forming part of the Basis for Qualified Opinion included in our main
report and Note 3A to the financial statements, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified
by the management during the year, except for certain Property, Plant and Equipment located at certain
customer location amounting to INR 313.54 lakhs (gross block) and INR 22.98 lakhs (net block). No
material discrepancies were noticed on the verification carried out during the year.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(it) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventories at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion, coverage and the procedure for such verification is appropriate. The management has
identified material discrepancies which have been appropriately accounted for in the books of accounts.
However, since the Company does not maintain sufficient and appropriate records for tracking of trading
inventory separately from consumables inventory as well as records for issue of consumables, the
management is unable to distinguish the variances on account of physical verification and standard
consumption of inventory. Therefore, we are unable to comment on whether the discrepancies in aggregate
for each class of inventory are more than 10% or not.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of current
assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.



(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) and
(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(F) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight
delay in case of Income tax (tax deducted at source) (upto 19 days), Goods and service tax (upto 12 days),
provident fund (upto 156 days) and professional tax (upto 10 days). According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount (in | Period to which | Forum where the
statute dues INR lakhs) the amount relates | dispute is pending
Income tax Act, | Income tax 21.62 | AY 2019-20 Assessing officer, Delhi
1961

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.



()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(F) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Except for the matters described in the paragraph A of forming part of the Basis for Qualified Opinion
in our main report, according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) During the year the Company has received certain whistle blower complaints for certain transactions
which are currently being investigated. As mentioned in paragraph A forming part of the Basis for Qualified
Opinion included in our main report and note 27 to the financial statements, pending the completion of
such investigation we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, on the financial statements for the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177
of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system
under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report under
clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.



(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility
is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 22121648AXFWQC9309
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 30, 2022



Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements of
Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Washroom
Hygiene Concepts Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by ICAL.

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.



Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not established its internal financial
control with reference to financial statements on criteria based on or considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI. Because of this reason, we are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion whether the Company had adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as at March 31, 2022 and whether such internal
financial controls were operating effectively. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on Internal Financial
Controls with reference to these financial statements.

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI, as specified under Section
143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited, which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the related Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and our report dated September XX, 2022 expressed unqualified opinion thereon.
We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and the disclaimer does not affect our opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 22121648AXFWQC9309
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 30, 2022



Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
Al amonnts are in lokhs of fndian Rupees wndess otherwise stared)

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 57.59 120.58
Right-of-use assets 4 6.99 -
Deferred tax asscts (net) 11 116.14 120.90
180.72 241,43
Current assets
Inventories 2 158.89 90.00
Financial assets
(5) Trade receivables 9 20L.05 145.40
(iiy Cash and cash eguivalents 10.1 62.04 77.05
{iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 10.2 113.98 3.98
{iv) Loans 5 16.66 16.57
(v) Other Financial assets 7 990 (.38
Current lax assets 12 13.84 15.30
Other current assets 4] 43.63 55.52
619.99 404.20
Total Assets 800.71 645.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eguity
Equity share capital 13.1 9.71 9.71
Other Equity 13.2 610.05 514.70
619.76 524.41
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 18 £3.96 2311
13.96 23,11
Current liabilities
Financial liabihties
(1) Borrowings 14 - 74
(£ Leune Tiabilities 4 &Yl -
(iit) Frude Puyubles 12
Total cutstanding dues of micro, small and medéwm enterprises 13.36 13.05
Total outstanding dues other than micro, siall and medium enterprises 54.85 798
(iv) Other current financial liabihtzes 16 77.82 61.13
Other current liabilities 17 5.60 6.22
Provisions 18 5.88 5.98
Current tax liabilitics (net) 19 2.37 3.06
166,99 Y8.16
Total liabiitics ‘180,95 121,27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES 800,71 645.68
Surennary of significant aceounting polictes 7
‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financiaf Statements 3-44

As per our report of cven date

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP

Cliw berad Acvoueiuuy

[CAI Finn Registration Namber: [ 01049W/E300004
"

per Chirag Shah
Partner
Memhership No 121648

Place: Chennai
Date : September 30, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Wakhraom Hyplene Cancepts Private Limited

Santhanam Madhavan

Director

DIN 02822819

C R Saravanan
Director
LHM ; 00065798



R e ittt G T AT s

Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes 31 March 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 20 800.42 817.18
Other income 21 5.81 1.27
Total income 806,23 818.45
Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 22 199.69 245.50
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of traded goods 23 (81.14) (12.61)
Employee benefits expense 24 264.36 308.14
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 83.93 183.80
Finance costs 26 0.75 034
Other expenses 27 226.33 207.13
Total expense 693.92 932.30
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 11231 (113.85)
Exceptional item
Recovery for irregularities 28 (8.58) -
Profit/{loss) before tax 120.89 (113.85)
Tax Expense :
Current tax 30 27.75 -
Adjustment of tax relating to eatlier years 1.33 -
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 30 2.68 (28.53)
Total Income tax expense 31.76 (28.53)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 89.13 (85.32)
Other Comprehensive Income:
Items that will not to be reclassified (o profil ur luss in subsequent perfods:
Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) 832 (0.48)
Income tax effect : (2.08) 0.10

6.24 (0.38)
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 6.24 (0.38)
Tutal comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax Y5.37 (85.70)
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted { Amount in ¥ ) 29 91.75 (87.82)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the 3-44
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Amount
Balance as on March 31, 2020 0.97 9.71
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Balance as on March 31, 2021 0.97 9.71
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Balance as on March 31, 2022 0.97 9.71
(b) Other equity
Particulars Securities Total
Retained Premium
Earning
As at March 31, 2020 554.84 45.54 600.38
Less: Other Comprehensive Loss {0.38) - (0.38)
Less: Loss for the year (85.32)- - (85.32)
As at March 31, 2021 469.14 45.54 514.68
Add: Other Comprehensive income 6.24 - 6.24
Add: Profit for the year 89.13 - 89.13
As at March 31, 2022 : 564.51 45.54 614.05
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Stutements 3-44

As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration number: 101049W/E300004

—

‘&Wwd«;,// i = T R

per Chirag Shah Santhanam Madhavan C R Saravanan
Partner Director Director
Membership No.121648 DIN : 02822819 DIN : 05069798

Place: Chennai
Date : September 30, 2022



e YT AR E T T G T T e L T

Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amowns are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit / {Loss) before tax 120.89 (113.85)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 8393 183.80
Interest expenses 26 0.75 0.34
Interest income 21 (2.96) {0.63)
Provision for expected credit loss of trade receivables 27 3.88 9.34
Bad debts written off 27 11.93 -
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 218.42 79.00
Movements in working capital :
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivabies (71.46) 213,46
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories (68.89) (14.85)
{Increase)/decrease in loans and deposits (0.09) (0.13)
{Increase)/decrease in other assets 2.36 (1.10)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 4713 (109.19)
Increase/ (decrease)} in provisions (0.94) 4.51
Increase/ {decrease) in financial liabilities 16.6% (16.05)
Increasef {(decrease) in other liabilities (0.62) (14.08)
Cash generated from /(used in) operations 142,60 141.57
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (27.35) {57.25}
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activitics A 11525 84.32
Cash flow from Envesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (15.94) (47.38)
Envestments in fixed deposits {110.00) 1.24
Interest received 2.96 1.28
Net cash flow from/ {used in) investing activities B (122.98) {44.86)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (0.73) (1.38)
Payment of lease liabilities (5.80) (8.38)
Interest paid (0.75) (0.34)
Net cash flow fram/ (used in) in financing activitics C (7.28) {(10.10)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+( (15.01) 20.36
Cush and cash equivalents st the beginning of the year 77.05 47.69
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 62.04 77.05
Mon cnsh financing and investing activitica
Acquisition of Right-of-use assets 11.99 -
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 3-44
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements lor the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

I. Corporate information

Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited (*the Company™) was incorporated on January 24, 2003, The Company is a
private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the company is located at 4D, Gopala Tower, Rajendra Place, New Dethi — 1 10008. Washroom Hygiene
Concepts Private Limited is engaged in providing feminine hygiene solutions to companies operating in various sectors
such as information technology, manufacturing, hospitality and others.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 1If to the Companies Act, 2013,
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following;

a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies; and

b) Defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.2 Summary of Significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be scttled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months afler the reporting period
The Compuny classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

" The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

AN e
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.Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

b. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified
as Capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of asset not put to use before such date are disclosed under
“Capital Work in Progress”.

For depreciation purposes, the Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset
having useful life that is materially different from that of the life of the principal asset and depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. Expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of
property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

The Company, based on technical assessment made by experts and management estimates, depreciates certain items of
property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
I to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair

approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The Company has used the fallawing rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment.

Asset Classification Estimated Useful  Life | Useful lives as per Sch-11 of
(Years) Companies Act, 2013 (years)

Plant and machinery ¥ 5 15

Furniture and fittings 10 10

Office equipment 5 5

Vehicles 3 8

Computer and accessories 3 3

*The Company classifies assets used directly in generating revenue such as Bins, Vending Machines, Dispensers, etc. as
Plant and machinery.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed al each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

¢. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not gencrate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to ils recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the esthnated (ulure cash flows arc discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that refleets current market assessments of e lime value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the services, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for
the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After
impairment, depreciation / amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation / amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

d. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when conirol of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company cxpects to be entitled in exchange (or those goods or
services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements since
it typically controls goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significunt uccounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracls will
customers are provided in Note 20,

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery. Revenue from the sale of goods
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration,
the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if

any).

Rendering of Services

Revenues from rendering services namely, La Femme Care Bin Service (LFCB) and Rental of Sanitary Pad Vending
Machine (SPVM) contracts are accounted on accrual basis on performance of the services agreed in the contract with the
custoiners.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “Finance income” in the statement of profit and loss.

[ ‘_Q*M




Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

Contract balances

(a} Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional,

Contract Assets (Unbilled revenue) represents revenue in excess of billing,

(b) Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

(¢) Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract,

e. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

e (i) Financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

» the asset is held within a business model whose ohjective is w Lold assels in order Lo colleet contractual cash Alows:
and

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments on principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCL:

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

« - the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, ‘

The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet amortised cost criteria
or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of the transition date. Accordingly,
the Company has classified all debt instruments as of the transition date at amortised cost.

e (ii) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition,

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial asscls classilicd as al
FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other Income” line item.

e (iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. Investments
in Mutual funds are measured at FVTPL.
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “Other Income™ line item.

e (iv) Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost;

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Provision for
ECL is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expenses in the statement of
profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L.

e (v) De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contro! the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received,

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the
cansideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,

¢ (vi) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and linbilities vn initial recognition, Afier initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Chunges (0 the business model are expected Lo be inlrequent. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifics financial assets,
it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediaiely next
reporting period following the change in business model.

¢ (vii) Financlal Habilities and equity instruments

e (vii)(1) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instrements issued by the Company are classified as either financial liahilities or as equity in aceordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

e (vii)(2) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

e {viii) Financial liabilities
Allfinancial liabilities arc subsequently measured at amortiscd cost using the effective interest rate method or at FVTPL.

é‘_()\,g\.‘é/"ﬁ
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in
profit or [oss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘Other income' line item,

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at FVTPL
are recognised in profit or loss.

e (ix) Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held—for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial Habilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs
of an asset is included in the “Finance Costs” line item,

e (x) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

e (xi) De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company*s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

f {xii) Derivative financial instruments
The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initiaily recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of cach reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately,

f (xiii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there
is a currently enforccable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the lfabilities simultaneously.

f. Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Traded Goods: Cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present Jocation and condition.
Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

g. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a written down value basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

° Building 1-2years

if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reﬂects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 4 Impairment of non-
financial assets.

i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rale, and amounts
expecled Lo be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variuble leuse payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recogniscd as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce invenlories) in the period in which the event ot
condition that triggers the payment oceurs,

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the Icase payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

i) Short-term lenses and leascs of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term lcascs of buildings (i.c., thosc lcases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a pirchase option), Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classitied as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

h. Retirement and other employee benefits
a. Compensated absences

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The labilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as non-current employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such non-current compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains / losses are immediately taken to
the staternent of profit and loss and are not deferred.

b. Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
i. Gratuity obligations

Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is a defined benefit obligation. The Plan provides payment to
vested employees at retirement, death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment with the Company. The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined on
the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method,

In addition w the above, the Company recognises its liability in respect of gratuity for employees. Employee benefits
expense in respect of gratuity to employees and reimbursement right is presented in accordance with Ind AS — 19,

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts inclueded in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debil or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they ocour. Remeasurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date
that the Company rccognises related restructuring costs,

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs and
- Net interest expense or income,

ii. Retirement benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other

than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the seleme
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that
the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

i. Taxes on Income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and Habilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assct or liability in a transaction that
is not a busincss combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable prolils will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and Habilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is
probable thal Tuture taxable profit will be uvuiluble against which the unused tax losses and unused liax credils cun be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and written off to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has becomc
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Doforred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax ratcs that arc cxpeeted Lo apply in the vear when the asset is

realised or the Hability is seltled, bused on tax rates (and tax laws) that have heen snacted or substantiviely coacted al the
reporting date.
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

j- Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

k. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use ol unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, bascd on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques [or which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a rccurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company. At each reporting date, the Company analyses
the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the
accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounis are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

.. Segment reporting

The Management monitors the operating results of its business as a single primary segment “Feminine Hygiene Solutions™
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The business of the Company
falls under a single primary segment i.e. ' Feminine Hygiene Solutions ' for the purpose of Ind AS 108.

m, Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of ali dilutive potential equity shares.

n. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle present obligation at the
end of reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainty surrounding the obligation. When a provigion is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of these
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

o. Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets

Contingent liahility is disclosed for,

(i) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or 4 relizble estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are not

recognised in the financial statements.

Contingent assets arc disclosed in the Iinancial Statements by way of notes (o accounts when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

p- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as delined
ahove.

Buank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

q. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements
and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the

repotted amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Application of accounting policies that require
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions in these financial
statements have been disclosed in Note 31. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

r. Standards Issued but not effective
New and amended standards

(i) Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part of a set
of standards pronounced by the standard-setters. While, the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for
formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting
policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting policy, and to assist all parties
to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS includes
amendment of the footnote to the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be
added for definition of liability i.e., definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of definition in conceptual
framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notification
dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual
Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(ii) Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 to update the
condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30
June 2021, The amendment applies (0 annual reporting petiods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 In casa a lesses has not
yet approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
(iii) Amendment to Ind AS 165, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use™ are replaced with “highet of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”, ‘Iic
consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the finuncial statcments of the Company.




Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and  Furniture Office Computer and

Particulars . . VYehicles . Total
machinery and fixtures ecquipments accessories
Cost
At March 31, 2020 652.80 0.53 0.90 13.98 12.46 680.67
Additions 34.15 - 0.03 - 0.53 34.71
Disposals - - - - . -
At March 31, 2021 686.95 0.53 0.93 13.98 12.99 715.38
Additions 9.92 - 0.51 - 5.51 15.94
Disposals - - - - - -
At March 31,2022 696.87 0.53 1.44 13.98 18.50 731.32
Depreciation
At March 31, 2020 393.45 0.19 0.77 10.07 6.53 411.01
Charge for the year 175.20 0.09 0.12 234 6.04 183.79
Disposals - - - - - -
At March 31, 2021 568.65 0.28 0.89 12.41 12.57 594.80
Charge for the year 76.24 0.05 0.18 0.91 1.55 78.93
Disposals - - - - - -
At March 31, 2022 644.89 0.33 1.07 13.32 14.12 673.73
Net Block
At March 31, 2022 51.98 0.26 0.37 0,66 4.38 57.59
At March 31, 2021 11830 (.24 0.04 1.57 0.42 120.58
Note 3A

The Company has a policy of verifying all assets once in three years. Owing to on-going COVID pandeniic over the last 2-3
years, the Company has been unable to verify certain assets lying with customers amounting to INR 313.54 lakhs (gross block),
INR 22.98 lakhs (net block) per its policy (over the past three years). However, the Company has been recovering the service
charges for use of such assets from its customers regularly and is consequently confident that such assets are physically available
and usable. No provision is hence deemed necessary against such assets.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees. unless othenvise stated)

4

Right of use Assets and Lease Linbilities

As a [essee

The Company has lease contracts for building used in its operations. Leases of building generally have lease terms between t and 3 years.
The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. The Company applies the ‘short-term
lease” and ‘lease of low-value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.

(i) Movement in the carrying value of the Right-of-use Asset for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars - Building As at March 31, 2622 As at March 31, 2421
Balance as at April 1 - .01
Present value of minimum lease payments entered during the year 11.9% -
Amortization charge for the year {5.00) (0.01)
Balance as at March 31 6.99 -

Net carrying value of Right of use assets

(ii) Movement in the carrying value of the Lease Liability for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021
Balance as at April ] - 8.38
Present valee of minimum lease payments entered during the year 11.99 -
interest Expense 0.72 021
Ecase Payments {Total Cash Qutflow] (5.80) (7.95)
Lease rent concession - (0.64)
Balance as at March 31 6.91 -

Lease rent concession .
During the previous year, the Company Lias 1eceived the Covid-19-retated rent concessions for lessees amounting to INR .64 lakhs and on
the basis of practical expedient as per Ind AS 116 “Leases™, the same is not considered te be lease moditication, hence the income towards
rent concession is recognised in “Uther Income” 1n the statement of profit and loss account.

(iit) Classification of current and non current [iabilitics of the lease liabilities:

Tarticulas As at Moreh 31, 2022 As at Marvel 31, 2021
Current Liabilities 091 -
Non-Current Liabitities - -
Total Lease Liabilitics 6.91 -

(iv) Contractual Maturities of Lease liability outstanding as at year end:

Particulars Asat March 31,2022  AsatMarch 31, 2023
Less than one year 6.91 -
One to five years - -

Mare than five ycars -
Total 6.91 -

Lease liabilities are recognised at weighted average incremental borrowing rate at 8.84%. The Company does not face a significant
liquidity risk with regard to its Jease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to the lease liabilities as
and when they fall due,

{v) The following are the amounts recognised in prafit or Inss:

Particulnrs Axad March 31,2022 Awad Mareh 31, 2021
Amortization expense on right-of-use assets 5.00 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.72 0.21
Total 5,72 0.21

e
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Financial Assets - Current Assets

5 Loans
(At amortised cost)

(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise}

Rental deposits

6 Other Current Assets
(At amortised cost)

(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)

Prepaid expenses
Balance with government authorities

Supplier Advance
- considered good
- credit impatred

Less: Provision for Supplier Advances
Advances to employees

- considered good

~ credit impaired

Less: Provision for employee advances

7 Other current financial assets
(AL Amaortised Cast)

Interest accrued
EInbilled revenue

8 Inventories

{At lower af cost or net realisable value)

Stock in Trade
Stock of Consumables
Goods-in-transit

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
16.66 16.57
16.66 16.57
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
535 -
36.45 53.19
i4.24 14.00
- 0.29
14.24 14.29
(14.24) (14.00)
- 0.29
1.83 2.04
5147 517
7.00 7.21
(5.17) (5.17)
133 2.04
43.63 55.52
As at Asat

March 31,2022

Mareh 31,2000

316 0235
6.74 0.13
9.90 0.38
As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
9192 54.64
18.11 30.36
49.06 -
158.89 90.00
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
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9 Trade Receivables

Trade receivables
Trade Receivables from related parties {refer note 37)

Security Details
Considered good, Unsecured
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
197.87 142.07
3.8 3.33
20105 145,40
201.05 145.40
2343 23.74
224.48 169.14
(23.43) (23.74)
{23.43) (23.74)
201.05 145.40

Trade Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally have Credit period fo a maximum of 90 days. For terms and
conditions relating to Related Party receivables (Refer Note 37). There are no debts due by directors or other officers of
the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private companies

respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

Ageing of trade Receivables:

{i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good
- Not due

- Less than 6 months

- 6 months - 1 year

- 1.2 years

- 2-3 years

- More than 3 years

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
- Not dne

- Lesy {han & months

- 6 months - T vear

- 1-2 years

- 2-3 years

- More than 3 years

10.1 Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Balances with banks
- On current accounts
{it) Cash in hand

10.2 Other Bank Balances

- Deposit with orfginal maturity of more than 3 months und less than cne year

O R A

98.89 4.42
102,16 122.61
- 15.88
- 0.85
- 1.64
10.52 7.29
4.94 9.80
439 4.95
3.57 1.70
224.47 169.14
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
61.98 76.73
0.06 0.32
62.04 7745
113.98 398
113.98 3.98
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continucd)
(All amounts ave in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

11 Deferred Tax Assct (net)

Difference between the writlen down value of property, plant and equipment as per

boaks of accounts and the Income Tax Act, 1961

Provision for doubtful advances

Provision for doubtful debts

Proviston for gratuity and leave encashment

Provision for bonus

Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income

Recanciliation of deferred tax assets (net):

Opening balance as at April 01
Tax income / expense during the year recognised in profit / loss

Tax income / expense during the year recognised in other comprehensive income

Closing balance as at March 31

12 Current tax assets

Advance income taxes

As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
93.68 93.07
4.89 4.82

5.70 597

4.99 7.32

6.88 6.54

- 3.18
116.14 120.90
120.90 92.27
(2.68) 28.53
(2.08) 0.10
116.14 120.90
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
13.84 15.30
13.84 15.30

(This space is intentionally left blank)

O R Sna—




Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Marceh 31, 2022 (continued)
(Al amoririts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

13.1

13.2

As at

Equity share capital
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Authorised
1.50 fakh (March 31, 2021: 1.50 takh) equity shares of Rs 10 each 15.00 15.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
0.97 lakh (March 31, 2021: 0.97 lakh) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up 9.71 9.71
9.71 9.7
a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 97,148 971,480 97,148 971,480
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 97,148 971,480 97,148 971,480

b) Terms / rights attached to cquity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares dividend in Indian Rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the

ensuing Annwal General Mecting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, equity share holders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the compzany

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares % of shareholding

No. of shares % of shareholding

(lakhs) (fakhs)

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Updater Services Private Limited 0.97 100.00% 0.87 90.00%
Four Wind Projects Private Limited - - 0.10 10.00%

0.97 100.00% 0.97 100.00%
d) Details of shares held by promoters

As at 31 March 2022
Nu. of shares  Change dering No. ol shares at the % of T'otal Shares % change

Name of the promoter

(lakhs) the year end of the year during the year
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paic
Four Wind Projects Private Limited 0.10 (0.10) - 0.00% -100%
0.10 (0.10) -
As at 31 March 2021
Name of the promoter No. of shares Change during No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change
(lalchs) the yenr end of the year during the year
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
T'our Wind Projeets Private Limited 0.23 (0.14) .10 10.00% -58%
0.23 (0.14) 0.10
Other equity Asat As at
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Retained earnings 564.51 469.16
Securities preminm 45.54 45.54
610.05 514.70

Nature and purpose of other reserves

(i) Securities premium

Securities premium represents the premium on issue of shares. This reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(ii) Retained earnings

The amount can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the financial statements of the Company and

alsr considering, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Thus, the amonnis reparted ahave may nat he distribntable in entirety
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Notes to financial statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
(ANl amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stared)

Finzancial Liabilities (Current)

14 (i} Borrowings As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Term Loan
From Bank
Term leans from bank* - 0.74
- 0.74
* The Company has a term Joan from bank secured against a vehicle at an interest rate 6f 9.51% p.a.
15 Trade Payables (Current} As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13.36 13.05
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 54.85 7.98
68.21 21.03
Trade payables to retated parties (refer note 37) 2.0 010
Trade payables to others 66.20 20.93
68.21 21.03

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within a period of 30 10 90 days. For terms and conditions relating to Related Party
payables (Refer Note 37). The information regarding micro or small enterprise has been determined on the basis of information available with the

management.

Ageing of trade payables:
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterpriscs - Undisputed

- Not due - -

- Less than 1 year 13.36 13.05

- 1-2 years - -

- 2-3 years - -

- More than 3 years - -

Total 13.36 13,05

(i} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises - Undisputed

- Not due 49.10 -

-~ Less than 1 year 5.75 798

- 1-2 years - -

- 2-3 years - -

- More than 3 years - -

Total 54,35 7.98
16 Other current financial liabilities As at As at

(At Amartised cast) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Capital creditors 771 3.90

Other Payables 9.03 12.93

Employee Payable 61.08 44.30

77.82 61.13

17 Other current Liabilities As at As at

March 31, 2022

31 March 2021

Advanee from customers 1.74 1.40
Statutory ducs and related Habilities 3.86 4.81
5.60 6.21
18 Provisions Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {vefer note 32) 9.89 16.42 "3.91 3.16
Provizion for leave ancashiment 4.07 6.09 1.97 2.82
1346 2511 5.48 5.94
Total Provisions 13.96 5.88 598
19 Liabilittes for eurvent tax {net)
As al Asal
March 31,2022 31 March 2021
Provision for income taxes (pross) 146 23 118 .66
Lezs: Advance Taa (143.04) (L15.54)
Provision for income taxes (net) 257 ‘
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
{All amounts are in lakhs of indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

20 Revenue from contracts with customers Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of services 600,68 558.49
Sale of products 199.74 258.69
800.42 817.18
Other disclosures
(a) Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue recognised at a point in time 600.68 258.69
Revenue recognised over a period of time 169.74 558.49
800.42 817.18
(b) Summary of balances relating to revenue from contracts with
customers
Trade receivables 201.05 145.40
Unbitted revenue 6.74 0.13
Advance from customers [.74 1.40
(c) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement
of profit and loss with the contracted price:
Revenue as per Contracted Price 8058.60 823.80
Adjustments
- Discount (5.18) (6.62)
Revenue as per statement of profit / loss 800.42 817.18
21 Other income Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Other non-operating income 2.85 -
Interest from Bank Deposits 291 -
Interest from other deposits 0.05 0.63
Lease rent concessions - 0.64
5.81 1.27
22 Purchases of Stock in trade Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchases of stock in trade 199.69 245.50
Purchases of Stock in trade 199.69 245.50
23 Change in Inventory of Stock in trade Year ended Year ended

Inventories at the end of the year

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Stock in trade 140.78 59.64
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Stock in trade 59.64 47.03
Net (Increase)/Decrease of stock in trade (81.14) (12.61)
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
(Al armtonnis are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stared}

24 Employee Benefit Expenses Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Salaries and wages 246.40 290.30
Contribution to provident fund and other fund 13.05 1187
Less: Income from government grants* {0.05) 0.00
Gratuity Expense 3.06 4.67
Staff welfare expenses 1.90 2,00

264.36 308.14

* The Company is availing of benefits under a government scheme - Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Protsahan Yojana
(PMRPY) wherein the Central Government is paying the employer’s contribution towards Employee Pension
Scheme / Provident Fund in respect of new employees meeting a specified criteria,

25  Depreciation and amortisation expense Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciatior: on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 78.93 183.80
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 5.00 -
83.93 183.80
26 Finance Cost Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on borrowings 0.03 0.13
Interest on lease liabilities 0.72 0.21
0.75 0.34
27  Other Expenses Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Consumption of stores and spares 68.80 46.86
Power & fuel ' 1136 9.71
Freight and forwarding charges 19.63 28.23
Rent 29.19 26.90
Rates and Taxes 13.76 3.80
Insurance - 0.71
Repairs and maintenance- Others 21.85 31.07
Travelling and conveyance 7.11 14033
Communication expenses 4,37 578
Printing and stationery 2.66 3.1
Legal and professional fees 15.34 1135
Provision for bad and doubtful debtors 388 9.34
Bad debts written off 11.93 -
Payment to auditor (Refer details below) 7.10 7.50
Exchange differences (net) - 0.41
Bank charges 0.06 0.19
Miscellaneous expenses 9.29 11.16
226.33 207.13
(a) Payment to anditors
As auditors
Statutory Audit 7.00 7.50
In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses 0.10 -
710 7.50

(h} CHR exprasey

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not

applicable to the Company.,
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Neotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated}

28 Exceptional item

Recovery for irregularities

During the year ended March 31, 2022, management has identified certain instances of jrregularities in
disbursement/ payment of salary to fictitious and lefi employees in the current as well as earlier years. Based on
initial inquiries performed by the Management, we expect the possible impact of such irregularities to be INR 9.95
lakhs {Cost relating to current year amounts to INR 1.37 lakhs and balance INR 8.58 lakhs relates to prior years)
and have recovered such amounts from the employees responsible for such irregularities during the current year.

Furthermore, the Company has alleged that the above employees have been engaged in multiple other fraudulent
activities including misuse of company’s assets / resources, collusion, conflict of interest, illegal commissions,
unauthorised transactions on behalf of the Company.

The above mentioned employees have been terminated during the year and a police compliant has been filed
against some of the such personnel.

The Company has also initiated the investigation process to assess the completeness of the exposure on the above
transactions and any potential irregularities on other transactions by engaging an external independent expert.
Pending the completion of the aforesaid investigation and the final outcome, management is unable to determine
the possible impact, if any on the financial statements.

29 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity

shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit / (loss) after tax 89.13 (85.32)
Net profit / (loss) for calenlation of EPS 89.13 (85.32)
Weighted average number of equity shares (in lakhs) 0.97 0.97

Basic & Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (Rs.) 91.75 (87.82)
Mominal valuc per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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Washroom Hygience Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

30 Income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:

Profit or loss section

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current tax:

Current income tax charge 27.75 -

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year 1.33 -

Deferred tax:

Relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences 2.68 (28.53)
31.76 (28.53)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Other comprehensive income (OCI) section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
loss

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) 832 (0.48)
Income tax charged to OCI 5.32 (0.48)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March
31,2022 and March 31, 2021; '

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard
rate of corporation tax in India as follows:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Accounting profit before income tax 120.89 (113.85)
Enacted tax rate in India* 25.17% 2517%
Profit before income tax multiplied by enacted tax rate 30.43 (28.65)
Effects of'

Tax retating to earlier years 1.33 -
Others 0.00 012
Net effective income tax 3176 (28.53)
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 {continied)
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise siated)

31

32

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, asseis and labilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent labilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the controf of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Befined benefit plans {gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, present value of the gratuity obligation and leave encashment berefit are dstermined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the detennination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about defined benefit obligations are given in Note 32.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest
rate of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly
available mortality table in India. The mortality 1ables tend 1o change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases
are based on expected future inflation rates.

b) Deferred taxes

The Company’s 1ax expense for the year is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The caleulation of the total tax expense necessarily involves a degree of
estimation and judgement in respect of certain items. A deferred tax asset s recognised when it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. Recognition, therefore. involves judgement regarding the prudent forecasting of future taxable gains and profits of the business.

¢} Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic

The cutbreak of Coronavirus (COVID -19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has
considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of property plant and equipment and receivables. In
developing the assumptions refating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemie, the Company, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information and economic forecasts. Basis
such evaluation, the management does not expect any adverse impact on its future cash flows and shall be able to continue as a going concern and meet its obligations as
and whan they fall due. The impect of COVID-19 on tha Company’s fianciul siateents sy diffor Gom et culimated us at the due of upproval of these financial
statements. The Company will continue to monitor future economic conditions for any significant change.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits™:

(i) Defined benefit plans:
A, Uratuoity

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Uinder the Act, every employee
who has completed 4 years and 240 days of service are eligible for gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each completed year of service. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement.

The following table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the
balaee sheel fun the gratuily plan:

(a) The amounts recogniscd in Balance Sheet are as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of Defined RBenefit OWlipatinn 13.80 19.58
Fair value of plan asscts " "
Nef Liahility or asset 13.80 19.58
Corrent ERL 3.16
Non - Current 9.89 16.42
(b} The amounts recoguised in o Statement of Profit wnd Loss mee ns fallnws:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Service cost :
Current service cost 1.93 3.85
Past service cost and loss/ (gain) on curtailments and settlement - -
Net interest cost @
Interest Expense gn Defined Benefit Obligation 1.13
Interest Income on Plan Assets -
Total included in '"Employes Renefit Expense’ 306

(L




Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Riupees uniess otherwise stated)

32 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employec benefits™ (continued)

(c) Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations

Due to change in financial assumptions (0.14) (0.93}

Due to change in demographic assumption (0.13) 0.83

Due to experience adjustments (8.05) 0.57
Return on plan assets - -

(8.32) 0.47
(d) The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as
follows:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation ' 19.58 14.44
Current service cost ’ 1.93 3.85
Interest cost 1.13 0.82
Actuarial kosses/(gains)

Due to change in financial assumptions 0.14) (0.93}

Due to change in demographic assumption (0.13) 0.83

Due to experience adjustments (8.05) 0.57
Past Service Cost - -
Benefit Paid 0.54) -
Closing balance of the present value of defined benefit obligation 13.80 19.58

(¢ ) Reconciliation of Net Liability / (Asset)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Net Liability / {Asset) at the beginning of the period 19.58 14.44
Defined Benefit cost included in the Profit / Loss 3.06 - 467
Defined Benefit cost included 1n Other Comprehensive Income (8.32) 0.47
Benefit Pa_lid {0.54) -
Net Liability / {Asset) at the end of the period 13.79 19.58
(1) Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
[} Discount rate 6 19% 579%
2) Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00%
3) Attrition rate 3278%at all ager  29.78% at ali
ages
4) Retirement age 58 58
5) Maturity tables

Indian Assured  Indian Assured
Lives Mortality  Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)

Ultimate Table  Ultimate Table

(£} A quantitative sensitivity annlysis for significant agsumptions are as follows

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Change Impact Change Impact
(1) Discount rate +0.5% {0.14) +0.5% (0.26)

. 0.5% 0.15 -0.5% 0.27

(lly Salary growlh raic +1.0% 0.30 +1.0% 0.54
-1.0% (0,29) -1.0% (0.52)
(it} Attrition +5.00% (0.22) +5.00% (0.80)

=5.00% .22 -5.00% 0.82

(h) Expected cashflows based on past service liability

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2022 March 3%, 2021

Year | 39 316
Year 2 3.07 4.68
Year 3 253 3.74
Year 4 1.88 3.06
Year 5 £.36 232
Next 5 years 324 6.33
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Notes to financial stalements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
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36

Details of dues to Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the
year ended March 31, 2021 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company:

As at Asat

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 13.30 12.99

Interest due on above 0.06 0.06

(b} Payment made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond the appeinted day, during the year - -
(¢) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) -
(d) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made -
(e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act 0.06 0.06

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders. The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, they may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net
debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Current borrowings - 0.74
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {62.04) (77.05)
Net debt {62.04) (76.31)
Total capital 619.76 524.45
Capital and net debt 557.72 448.14
~11.12% -17.03%

Gearing ratio
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Commitments and Contingencies
There are no open commitments for the Company or contingent Habilities for the Company as at March 31, 2022 or in the previous years thereon.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in one hasiness namely ‘Feminine Hygiene Solutions' and the operation primarily caters to the domestic market. The Directors
of the Company have been identificd as being the chief operating decision makers (CODM), and they evaluate the Company's performance, aflocate
resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicators of the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the
Company as per the requirement of Ind-AS 108 "Operating Segments". The Company's operations are only in one geographical segment, since its entire
revenue is derived from sales made in India,
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Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

37  Related party disclosures

(A) Names of related parties and nature of relationship are as follows:

Description of Relationship Name of the related partics
Hotding Company Updater Services Private Limiled
Entities under Common Controt Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited

Cosmic Healers Private Limited { Upto August 27,2021}
Lion Services Limited { Upto August 27,2021)

Global Exceflence Private Limited { Upto August 27,2021)
Nobilitas Infotech Private Limited { Upto August 27,2021)
Matrix Business Services India Pvt.Ltd

Avon Solution & Logistics Private Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. T Raghunandana - Director
Mr.Omprakash B R - Director (Resigned on August 31, 2021)
Mr.Madhavan S - Director
Dr L.P.S Bakshi (Resigned on August 31, 2021)
Mr, C R Saravanan ( Joined on August 31, 2021)
Mr.Sameer Jagmag (Resigned on September 11, 2021)

(B} Transactions entered during the year As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Manageria) remuneration

Mr Sameer Jagmag ] 19.85 64.50
Reimbursement of expenses

Updater Services Private Linited - 0.16
Purchase of goods

Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited 3.06 0.08
Sale of goods

Tangy Supplies and Selutions Private Limited 223 0.75
Updater Services Private Limited 349 382
Lion Services Limited 0.05 0.14
Avon Solution & Logistics Pvt ltd 0.82 -
Services received

Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited 0.85 -
Nobilitas infotech Private Limited 0.26 16.27
Avon Solution & Logistics Pvt Itd ' 8.16 -
Sale of services

Updater Services Private Limited 8,98 347
Lion Services Limited 0.07 0,68
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited - 2301
Matrix Business Services India Pvt.Ltd 0.41 0.30
() Malance onéstanding at the end of the year As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 202}

Trade layable

Tangy Supplies & Solutions Private Limited 0.83 0.08
Avon Solution & Logistics Pvt Ltd 1,18 -
Trade Reccivable
Updater Services Private Limited 3.04 295
Lion Services Limited 0.06 -
Tangy Supplies & Solutions Private Limited 0.03 .29
Matrix Business Services India Pvi ]id 005 0.08
. Other payable
: Uplater Services Private Limited - 0.16
Nobilitas Infotech Private Limited - 0.13

(D) The breakup of compensation to key managerinl personnel is follows:

Consideration to key managerial personnel As at As at
Marvh 3, 2022 Maeele 31, 2021

Salaries and other employee benefits 19.85 64.50
“The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not iclude the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as these are determined on an
actuarial basis [ur (he Comprany as a whole.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchascs from related party are made ot lerms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length wransactions. Outstanding balances at
the yemr-cnied are unsecored and interest free and setllement occurs in cash, For the vear ended March 31, 2022, the Company has not recorded any
impuitment of reecivables relating t amouuls uwed by Related Parlies.
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40.1

40,2

Fair values

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not
anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that eventually be received or settled,

Fair value hicrarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company's asset and liabilities

Particulars Carrying value Fair Value
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables (Level.3) 201.05 145.40 201.05 145.40
Cash and cash equivalents (Level.1) 62.04 77.05 62.04 77.05
Bank balances (Qther than above) Current (Level. 1) 11398 3.98 11398 398
Other financiat assets - Current (Level.3) 26.56 16.95 26.56 16.95
' 403,63 243.38 403.63 243.38
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - Current (Level.2) - 0.74 - 0.74
Trade Payables (Level.3) 68,21 21.03 68.21 21.03
Other Financial liabilities - Non Current (Level 3} 77.82 61.13 771.82 61.13
Lease Liabitities - Current (Level 3) 6.91 - 6.91 -
152,94 82,90 152.94 82.90

There have been no transfers between the levels during the year.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other current financial assets, short term borrowings, trade payables and other current
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Nates

Level [ inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability.

Finaseial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities are borrowings, lease labilities and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the
Company's operations. The Company has various financial assets such as loan, trade and vther receivables, cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company’s Board of Directors oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s risk management
assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and 1o monitor
such risks and compliance with the same. The following disclosures summarises the company’s exposure to financial risks;

Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk enKOmpasses
of buth, the direcl risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks, Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limirs and
creditworthiness of customers on a contintous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and loans receivables.

Trade and other receivables

In cascs of customers where credit is allowed, the avernge credit period on such sale of goods ranges fiom [ duy to 90 days. ‘Fhe customer credit risk is managed by the
Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on the individual credit
limits are defined in acrordance with this assessineaal and outstanding customer recefvables are regularly menitored.

Ind A3 requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal} that is required Lo adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date
10 the amount that is requised (v be recopnised m accordance with Ind AS 109, The Company assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether a financial
asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal
to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing (he expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a age wise provision matrix which is
prepared considering the historical data for collection of receivables.

Lxposure to credit risk:
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximun expusure w credit risk is T201.05 and ¥145.40 lakhs as of March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of trade receivables.

Foreign currency risk

The majority of Company's revenue and expenses are in Indian rupees, as a result there is minimal exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Consequently, the company does not uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, 10 mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates in respect of is forecasted cash flows and trade receivables.
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Financial risk management ebjectives and policies {continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insteument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company has no borrowings and hence not exposed to interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company monitors its risk of & shortage of funds
on & regular basis. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafis.

All financial liabilities are due within | year from the balance sheet date. The existing surplus funds along with the cash generated by the company are

sufficient to meet its current obligations.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at March 31,2022

Particulars On Demand  Less than 12 More than 12 Total
months maonths
Lease Liabilities - 7.15 - 7.15
Trade Payables - 68.21 - 68.21
Other financial liabilities - 77.82 - 77.82
- 153.18 - 153.18
As at March 31, 2021
Particulars On Demand  Less than 12 More than 12 Total
months months
Borrowings - 0.74 - 0.74
Trade Payables - 21.03 - 21.03
Other financial liabilities - 6E.13 - 61.13
- 82.90 - 82.90
Ratio analysis and its elements
Ratio Numerator Denominator  Asat March  As at March 31, % variance
31, 2022 2021
a) Current ratio (in times) Current Assets  Current 3,71 412 -10%
Liabilities
b) Debt-Equity ratio (in times) (1) Total Debt Equity 0.01 0.00 690%
¢) Debt service coverage ratio (in times) (1) Earnings Debt service 33.95 975 248%
available for
debt service
d} Return on equity ratio {in %) (2) Net profit Average total 4.17% -3.78% -210%
. equity
v} Tventory lunover tatio (in times) (3) Cost of goods ~ Average 23.82% 70.51% -6b%
sold invemory
f) Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) (4) Sales Average 1.16 0.80 45%
receivable
g} Trade payables tumover ratio (in times) (3} Purchases Average I.12 0.81 38%
payables
h) Net capital turnover ratio (in %) (3) Sales Working capital 177 2.67 -34%
1) Net profit ratio {(in %) (2) Net profit Sales 12% -10% -214%
Jj) Return on capital employed (in %) (2} Earning before  Capital 18% -22% -183%
interest and employed

taxes

(1) Debt Service coverage ratio has been computed basis lease liabilities repayment schedule as per Guidance note on Schedule III issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

{2) Ratic has improved due to decrease in loss during the year.

(3) Ratio has increased duc (v significanl ingrease in goods-In-lansit as al year-end.
{4} Ratio has increased due to significant increase in trade receivables

C T‘Z;W
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Other Statutory Information

(1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami prc
(i) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,
(iiii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the period,
(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period
(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, in¢luding foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shail:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{vi) The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Fu'nding Party) with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey ot any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax

Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on Social Security, 2020

Fartiament has approved the Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 which govern, and are fikely to impact, the contributions by
the Company towards certain employee benefits. The government has released draft rules for these Codes and has invited suggestions from stakeholders
which are under active consideration by the concerned Ministry. The effective date of these Codes have not yet been notified and the Company will
assess the impact of these codes as and when they become effective and will provide For the appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period
in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Prior year comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Washroom Hygiene Councepts Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number:101049W/E300004
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per Chirag Shah Santhanam Madhavan C R Sarayanan
Patlier Director Director
Membership No. 121648 DiN : 02822819 DIN ; 09069798

Place; Chennai
Date : September 30, 2022
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